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GFO-15-325
Question and Answer Clarification Letter
August 31, 2016

Development, Demonstration and Deployment of Environmentally and Economically Sustainable Biomass-to-Energy Systems for the 
Forest and Food Waste Sectors
(EPIC Bioenergy Solicitation)


Per Section IV. Evaluation and Award Process, D. Miscellaneous, 4. Solicitation Errors, the purpose of this Question and Answer Clarification Letter is to address ambiguity and an inadvertent omission.

1. For Group 1: AR&D: Efficient, Sustainable and Lower-Cost Bioenergy: Innovations to Improve Woody Biomass-to-Electricity Systems; would a site specific engineering design transforming an existing woody-biomass-to-power facility into a  facility that produces renewable natural gas, electricity and a concentrated CO2 stream with reduced emissions and higher efficiency  over the existing plant be a project that would be eligible under Group 1?  The idea is to use the woody-biomass more efficiently and in a more environmentally beneficial way.

Based on the limited information provided in the question and the requirements described in the GFO, this proposal does not seem to be precluded from applying to Group 1.  It is the applicant’s responsibility to ensure that the proposal meets the GFO requirements.

As noted in Section I. A., the purpose of this competitive solicitation is to advance bioenergy electricity generation. Projects must have a tie to generating electricity.
2. Is there a reason why CEC has limited the technology in Group 2 to thermochemical conversion?  
This limitation was provided as a clarification in the Q&A document to be consistent with the 2nd EPIC Investment Plan[footnoteRef:1] Strategic Objective 13.1. Solicitations must be consistent with the 2nd Investment Plan, approved by the CPUC in April 2015 (Section I. E. 2. Program Areas, Strategic Objectives, and Funding Initiatives). As noted in the 2nd EPIC Investment Plan, Strategic Objective 13.1 states in the purpose statement (underline added for emphasis): [1:  http://www.energy.ca.gov/2014publications/CEC-500-2014-038/ ] 

“This initiative advances pre-commercial technology demonstration and early-stage deployment of thermochemical biomass‐to‐energy conversion technologies, systems, and market strategies that have been successfully demonstrated at pilot scale. Proposed demonstration and deployment projects under this initiative may include bioenergy facilities in the forest or wildland/urban interface regions…and integrating low‑emission distributed generation (DG) technologies.”
Additionally, the emphasis of the solicitation addresses the Governor’s Proclamation of a State of Emergency concerning the Unprecedented Tree Die Off,[footnoteRef:2] Order 11, which states that the Energy Commission shall: [2:  https://www.gov.ca.gov/docs/10.30.15_Tree_Mortality_State_of_Emergency.pdf ] 

“…prioritize grant funding from the EPIC for woody biomass-to-energy technology	 development and deployment, consistent with direction from the CPUC.”
Further, in Section II. Eligibility Requirements, B. 1. b., the GFO states that Groups 2 and 3 projects: 

“….must focus on pre-commercial (or not widely used in California) technology demonstration and early-stage deployment of bioenergy technologies, systems, and strategies. The technologies, processes, and strategies must have been successfully demonstrated at pilot scale or shown to be technically feasible at commercial scale. Projects that make incremental changes to current technologies or strategies will be considered but applications should describe how the proposed project will dramatically change and improve operational performance or demonstrate strategies to significantly reduce operational costs.  

Using the DOE descriptions for TRL, TD&D projects must be within the range of TRL7 to TRL9.[footnoteRef:3]” [3:  http://www2.lbl.gov/dir/assets/docs/TRL%20guide.pdf See pages 9-11.] 

 
3. Please clarify what is meant by "thermochemical conversion" in the revised GFO for 15‑325?  Does the definition from the last woody biomass solicitation apply? 
Yes, the definition of thermochemical provided in PON 14-305 applies to GFO 15‑325. The definition is as follows:

Thermochemical conversion is a high temperature reaction (i.e. not anaerobic digestion), where feedstock is heated to different states depending on processes, to produce energy products in the form of producer gas, synthesis gas, hot combustion products or oil with the ultimate goal of using those products for generating electricity. Under this solicitation, projects with only the thermal energy as the sole product would not be eligible. Combined heat and power applications would be eligible if the project meets all of the conditions (e.g., electricity generation) in the GFO. 

As noted in the question and answer above, projects that make incremental changes to current technologies (such as direct combustion) or strategies will be considered but applications should describe how the proposed project will dramatically change and improve operational performance (for example, reduced air emissions) or demonstrate strategies to significantly reduce operational costs.  
4. Is a project using thermochemical conversion eligible for Group 3?
No. The GFO has been amended to clarify that thermochemical conversion projects are not eligible for Group 3. This clarification is consistent with the 2nd EPIC Investment Plan[footnoteRef:4] for Strategic Objective 13.2, which notes the purpose of the initiative is to advance (underline added for emphasis): [4:  http://www.energy.ca.gov/2014publications/CEC-500-2014-038/ ] 

	“… pre-commercial technology demonstration and early-stage deployment of anaerobic digestion and enabling technologies, systems, and market strategies that have successfully been demonstrated at pilot scale.”
5. The GFO has a limit of 3 MW nameplate capacity, why is this?
The limitation that projects in Groups 2 and 3 must be sized for 3 MW or less of electricity generation, specifically a nameplate capacity of 3 MW AC or smaller size, was included to be consistent with the SB 1122 CPUC BioMAT program.[footnoteRef:5] [5:  http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M143/K960/143960061.pdf ] 


Please note – that there is pending legislation (AB 1923, Wood, 2016)[footnoteRef:6] that may be enacted during this solicitation that would modify the BioMAT program to allow nameplate capacity of up to 5MW while restricting grid delivery to 3 MW.  [6:  http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201520160AB1923 ] 


If this legislation is enacted (i.e., the Governor signs it or allows it to become law without signing it) prior to the application deadline (December 21, 2016), this solicitation is automatically updated to allow applicants to receive funding for a nameplate capacity of up to 5MW while restricting grid delivery to 3 MW.  This update to the solicitation is automatic; the Commission will not issue another addendum.   

Accordingly, applicants are allowed to submit applications, based on this pending legislative change of a nameplate capacity of up to 5MW while restricting grid delivery to 3 MW. However, in the case the legislation is not enacted prior to the application deadline, it is the applicant’s responsibility to describe in the application how it will meet the project’s financing needs without relying upon the BioMAT program.

6. What is the new requirement for Intent and Commitment Letters for Feedstock Agreements?

The feedstock summary letter was added because there were many questions about the minimum percentages required to meet our target feedstock requirements. The summary will help reviewers (and applicants) more easily evaluate the feedstock plan/commitments for the project and confirm that the solicitation requirements have been met versus having to piece them together from feedstock intent and commitment letters which may not be fully comprehensive. Reviewers will use the feedstock summary letter to verify the information in the letters of intent and commitment. Applicants may provide additional explanations in the feedstock summary letter that may be helpful to reviewers in understanding how the feedstock requirements and preferences will be met.

Note that for Phase 1, the feedstock summary letter is based on what applicants intend to have in place by Phase 2. In Phase 2 applicants are expected to submit letters demonstrating firm commitments.



Crystal Presley-Willis, 
Commission Agreement Officer
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